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BRIEF IN SUPPORTOF CITY OF KANKAKEE’S OPPOSITION TO DECISION OF
KANKAKEE COUNTY CONCERNING SITING OF A NEW LANDFILL
FACILITY, PURSUANT TO SECTION 39.2 AND 40.1 OF THE ILLINOIS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT

Petitioner, CITY OF KANKAKEE, by and through its attorneys, Kenneth A. Leshenand

L. Patrick Power, Assistant City Attorneys for the City of Kankakee, hereby present this Brief in

support of its requestto overturn the decisionof theCounty Board of Kankakee County, siting a

new Landfill Facility, under Sections 39.2 and 40.! of the Illinois Environmental Protection

Agency,and arguesas follows:

I. THE KANKAKEE COUNTY BOARD LACKS THE JURISDICTION TO
CONDUCT HEARINGS OR MAKE THE DECISIONS WITH REGARD TO
THE SITING APPLICATION OF WASTE MANAGEMENT OF ILLINOIS,
INC. (WMII) BECAUSE OF ITS FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH SECTION
39.2(B)OF THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL ACT.

LAW:

Section39.2(b) requires that:

“No later than 14 days prior to a request for location approval the
Applicant shall causewrittennoticeof suchrequestbe servedeither in personor
by registeredmail, return receiptrequested,on the ownersof all propertywithin
the subjectarea not solely owned by the Applicant, and on the owners of all
propertywithin 250 feet in eachdirectionof the lot line of the subjectproperty,
said ownersbeing such personsor entities which appearfrom the authentictax
records of the County in which such facility is relocated;provided, that the
numberof all feet occupiedby all public roads,streetsalleys and other public
ways shall be excludedin computingthe250 feet requirement;providedfurther,
that in no event shall this requirementexceed400 feet, includingpublic streets,
alleysandpublic ways.”

Pre-filing notice requirementsof this Sectionarejurisdictional and havebeenheld to be

so by the State Supremeand AppellateCourts. Ogle County Bd. Ex rd. County of Ogle v.

Pollution Control Bd., 272 III. App. 3d 184, 208 III. Dec. 489, 649 N.E.2d545 (1995), appeal

denied, 163 Ill. 2d 563, 212 Ill. Dcc. 424, 657 N.E.2d625 (1995); KaneCountyDefenders,Inc.

v..Pollution Control Bd., 139 III. App. 3d 588,93 Ill. Dec.918, 487 N.E.2d 743 (2~Dist. 1985).
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FACTS AND ARGUMENTS:

A. APPLICANT’S PETITION SHOWS DEFECTIVE NOTICE ON ITS FACE.

Pre-fihing noticeof WMII’s applicationfor siting approvalwas sent to Objector,Merlin

Karlock by regularmail on July 29, 2002. The recordis bereftof any evidence,other than the

conclusoryand unswornstatementsby Donald Moran, WMII’s attorney, that any efforts were

madeto personallyserveMerlin Karlock. Donald Moran’sswornAffidavit attachedto WMII’s

siting applicationin no way indicatesthat Merlin Karlock was servednoticeby registeredmail,

certified mail or personalserviceor that any efforts were madeto effectuatepersonalservice.

DonaldMoran’s Affidavit on page4 indicatesthat Merlin Karlock wassent regularmail notice

on July 29, 2002. (Hearing 11/08/02 through 12/06/02, Volume I, pgs. 45 - 61). (The

transcriptsfrom thehearingscommencingin November,2002 shall hereinafterbe referredto as

“HearingF’ and thetranscriptsfrom thehearingsheld in May, 2003 shall hereinafterbe referred

to as“HearingII”).

The statutedoesnot allow proofof serviceby regularmail underSection39.2(b)of the

EnvironmentalProtectionAct. Therefore,proper notice pursuantto statutewas not given to

Merlin Karlock.

B. NOTICE TO RICHARD J. MEHRER.

Pre-fihingnoticeto RichardJ. Mehrerwaspostedon thedoorof a residencein Chebanse,

Illinois both for Mr. Mehrerandhis wife. (HearingI, Volume I, page62). Mr. Mehrerwasthe

listed ownerof a certain parcel of land locatedwithin 250 feet of the lot lines of theproposed

facility. Mr. Mehreris deceasedandwas deceasedat thetime notice was posted. Mrs. Mehrer

was living at the time of the pre-fihing notice. Again, the record is bereft of any evidence

showingthat efforts weremadeto personallyserveeither, Mr. Mehreror Mrs. Mehrer. (Hearing

I, Volume I, pages62 through68).

The only notice given with regardto that propertywas “postedservice” (See Motion to

Dismis.s-Notice-Mehrer,filed by Objector,Karloek). No attemptwasmadeto secureserviceon
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the heirsof Mr. Mehrer, althoughMr. Mehrer’swife residedin thearea. “Postedservice” is not

authorizedby Section 39.2 (b) of the EnvironmentalProtectionAct. Thereforepropernotice

pursuantto statutewasnot given to RichardJ. Mehrer.

C. NOTICE TO ROBERT KELLER and BRENDA KELLER.

RobertKeller and BrendaKeller areshownon the KankakeeCounty Assessor’srecords

asthe ownersofthepremisescommonlyknownas755 East6000 Road,Chebanse,Illinois. (See

Motion to Declare WMII’s Notice Insufficient to Provide the KankakeeCounty Board with

Jurisdiction in the Matter, filed by Objector,Michael Watson). The record is clear that these

individuals were entitledto serviceof processand noticein accordancewith the Section39.2(b)

of theAct. It is also clear from therecord,basedupon thetestimonyof both Robertand Brenda

Keller that they were neitherservedby registerednor certifiedmail nor personallyand did not

receivepre-fihingnoticefrom thePetitionerin this cause.

D. APPLICANT FAILED TO COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF
THE KANKAKEE COUNTY HOST AGREEMENT.

The pending application includes a host agreementwith KankakeeCounty. Said

agreementstatesin pertinentpartasfollows:

“Waste Managementshall file a siting application for the Exparided
Facility on or beforeJune 1, 2002, unless theCounty consentsin writing to an
extensionof this period for good cause shown. In the event that Waste
Managementdoesnot file a siting application for the ExpandedFacility on or
beforeJuneI, 2002,andabsenttheCounty’s consentin writing to an extensionof
thefiling deadlinefor goodcauseshown,this Agreementshall be null andvoid.”

The application in questiongiving rise to theseproceedingswas filed on August 16,

2002. This is clearly after the June I, 2002, deadline imposedby the above referred to

agreement.(SeeMotion in Limine to DismissPanB filed by Objector,RichardMurray, through

his attorney, KennethA. Bleyer).

Sincethe applicationcontaineda host agreementwhich is expired and is thereforevoid

and further,sincethereis no evidencethat the agreementhasbeenextended,theCounty Board is

without jurisdiction to hearthePetition.
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E. ALL DOCUMENTS REQUIRED BY SECTION 39.2(C)WERE NOT FILED
BY PETITIONER (SEE PARAGRAPH H A. BELOW)

F. NEITHER KANKAKEE COUNTY NOR APPLICANT FOLLOWED THE
LOCAL SITING ORDINANCE REQURESTS (SEE PARACARPH II B.
BELOW)

Basedupon theforegoing,theCounty Board was and is without jurisdiction to hearthis

Petition.

II. THE PROCEEDINGS WERE FUNDAMENTALLY UNFAIR

LAW:

The proceedingsbefore a Municipal Body under415 ILCS 5/39.2 must comport

with the standardof fundamental fairness. Southwest Energy Corporationvs. The Illinois

Pollution Control Board, 275 Ill. App. 3d 84; Land and LakesCo. vs. Illinois Pollution Control

Board,319 III. App.3d41.

FACTS AND ARGUMENT:

A. NECESSARY SUPPORTIVE DOCUMENTS WERE NOT MADE
AVAILABLE TO THE CITY OF KANKAKEE OR THE GENERAL
PUBLIC.

Motions to Dismisswerefiled at the initial petition for hearingconductedin this matter

on November8, 2002 basedon the unavailability to the public of certain portions of WMII’s

application. At that time, the Objectorsarguedthat certain portionsof the application filed by

the Petitioners were unavailable, namely all documentssubmitted to the Environmental

ProtectionAgency pertainingto the proposedfacility and specifically requiredto be filed by

Section 39.2(c). Objector Karlock tiled a Motion to Dismiss alleging that thesedocuments

(including previousoperatingrecordsof Petitioner)had not been filed by the Applicant. This

Motion wassupportedby an Affidavit of AttorneyGeorgeMueller who indicatedthat the Chief

Deputy CountyClerk wasunableto locatethesedocumentsfor inspectionand reviewing. Only

thefirst day of hearing,(11/8/02)did ElizabethHarvey, Attorney for theCounty Board, indicate
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that thedocumentshadbeenlocatedandwerenow availablefor inspectionat theCountyClerk’s

office.

In addition, neither the Kankakee County Clerk nor the KankakeeCounty State’s

Attorney’s office, in responseto a Freedomof Information Act Requestfiled by Objector

Karlock’s Attorney, was able to produceany letter of transmittal or othernotice of filing by

WMII showingandspecifically itemizingwhat in factwasincludedwith theApplicationre-filed

on August 16, 2002. (SeeAssistant State’sAttorney BrendaGorski’s Responseto Freedomof

InformationAct Requestattachedto ObjectorKarlock’s Motion to Dismissheardon 11/08/02at

theSiting Hearing).

In his depositionof April 29, 2003, JeffreyBruce Clark, theClerk of KankakeeCounty,

testified that at the time of the filing of WMII’s siting applicationin March of 2002 the County

Clerk’s officereceivedthreering bindersandsomemaps. (HearingOfficer’s Exhibit No. 8, pg.

22). Mr. Clark further testifiedthat at the time of the filing of WMII’s August application, the

CountyClerk’s office receivedadditional cardboardboxescontainingdocumentsandthat these

boxesboreno identifying marksor writing. (HearingOfficer’s Exhibit No. 8, pgs.25-26). Mr.

Clark designatedfour deputyclerks, including his chiefdeputy clerk, EstherFox, asthe sole

clerks authorizedto receivedocumentsfrom WMII relating to its siting application. (Hearing

Officer’s Exhibit No. 8 , pgs.28-29). If someof thedocumentsreceivedwereon microfiche,the

CountyClerk’s office apparentlydid not havethe ability to provide to thepublic the ability to

readthemicrofiche. (HearingOfficer’s Exhibit No. 8, pg.. 30).

RobertNorris, an expertconsultantretainedby objectorMerlin Karlock, confirmed the

unavailabilityanddisarrayof the recordsandhis inability to accessa microfichereaderor printer

attheCountyClerk’s office, ( HearingII, Volume 2,, pgs. 21 through27). The testimoniesof

JanetAndrzejewski( Hearing11 Volume 2, pgs.,48-53) andDarrelBruck, ( Hearing11, Volume

2, pgs. 12 through 13) supportthe conclusionto be drawnfrom thetestimonyof RobertMorris

that the full siting applicationwas unavailableto thepublic.

Assuming,arguendo,that the documentsrequiredby 39.2(e)were in fact filed with the

Application, the issueremainsthat thedocumentswere not availablefor inspectionor reviewby

the public prior to the first day of the hearing. Therefore, not only is this a jurisdictional

argumentbut an argumentthat goesto thefundamentalfairnessof theway the hearinghasbeen

conductedand not allowing the public accessto all of the recordsnecessaryto prepareits

objections. (Rc~identsAg~ffistPolluted Environmentand theEdmund B. Thornton Foundation
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vs. County of LaSalle and Landcomp Corporation, PCB 96-243, American Bottoms

Conservancyvs. Village of FairmontCity, PCB 00-200.)

The unavailabilityof thesedocumentsaffectedthe ability of theObjectorsto adequately

preparein this case. Much of the substantivetestimony at the siting hearingconcernedthe

hydro-geologiccharacterizationand monitoring of the existing facility as well asgroundwater

contaminationoriginatingin theexisting facility. The recordis fairly summarizedby statingthat

the questionof whetheror not monitoring well exceedancesat the existing facility constitute

groundwatercontaminationresulting from leachatemigration hasbeen hotly debatedbetween

WMII and the Environmental Protection Agency. Having the entire record of that debate

availablewould thereforehavebeencompletelyessentialfor a thu andfair hearingon the issue.

ObjectorKarlock’s expertgeologist,CharlesNorris, who had someof thesedocuments

madeavailableto himby othersources,complainedduringhis testimonythat thepossibility of a

completereviewon his part was impaireddue to the fact that thequarterlymonitoring records

for the existing facility were on microfichewhich he could not access.(HearingI, Volume 23,

pg. 18). Evenafter thesitinghearingshadbegunandtheCountyhad announcedthat the Waste

Managementdocumentspreviously filed with the Agency were now finally available for

inspectionin the CountyClerk’s office, the County Clerk’s office did not haveavailableto the

public a microfiche readerso that the public could accessthe entirety of said documents.

Although someof thesedocumentswere ultimately available to ObjectorKarlock’s geologist,

this informationwasnot availableto theCity of Kankakeeor otherObjectorsin this matter.

B. PETITIONER’S APPLICATION WAS INCOMPLETE AND NEITHER
COUNTY NOR APPLICANT FOLLOWED TUE LOCAL SITING
ORDINANCE REQIJIRMENTS.

The fact that thesiting Applicationwas not completeor ever certified assuch,and that

theApplication failed to containmaterialinformation requiredin theCounty’s regional Pollution

Control Facility HearingSiteOrdinance,alsomakesthis proceedingfundamentallyunfair.

The County Siting Ordinanceis reproducedat the beginning of Volume I of Waste

Management’sApplication, but SubsectionE entitled, “Date of Filing” hasbeen omitted from

the text reproducedin theApplication. SubsectionF oftheOrdinancestatesin pertinentpart,

“No application for site approval shall be deemedto havebeen filed or

acceptedfor filing unless all of the requirementsof this Ordinance
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applicabletheretoshall havebeengiven andno receiptor otherindication

of filing shall be given,until suchtime as it hasbeendeterminedthat the

applicationcomplieswith therequirementsof this Resolution. Within a

reasonableperiodof time after delivery of an application, the applicant

shall be advised:(a) either that it is a completeapplication,and that it has

beenacceptedfor filing, designatingthe dateof tiling; or (b) that the

applicationis not completespecifyingwherein it is deficient.”

ChristopherRubak, the WasteManagementrepresentativeresponsiblefor making sure

that WMII’s application fully complied with the County’s filing requirements,testified that he

neverreceivedany certificationof completenessor notice of incompletenessfrom any County

representativein connectionwith theApplication. (HearingI, Volume 18, pg. 110). He further

testified that to his knowledgethe Siting Ordinancehad not beenwaived by WMII for any

reasonor purpose.(Hearing1, Volume 18, pg. lOS). Furthermore,SubsectionH (2)(c) and

SubsectionH(2)(d) of the County Siting Ordinancerequiressubstantialdetail with regard to

closedfacilities ownedor operatedby the applicant. Thesedetailswerereviewedby Mr. Rubak

during his testimony,and he acknowledgedthat the informationrequiredwasnot includedwith

the Application and statedthat WasteManagementsimply chosenot to includethis information

becauseit would be too voluminous.(HearingI, Volume 18, pgs. 100- 101).

WMII’s knowingand intentionaldeletionofrequiredmaterialsfrom its siting application

prejudicesthe City of Kankakeeand other Objectors,and thereforerenders the proceedings

fundamentallyunfair. SincetheApplicant’s previousoperatingrecordwas a filing requirement

pursuantto KankakeeCounty’s SitingOrdinance,a completerecordof theApplicant’sactivities

atotherclosedfacilities wasrequiredfor afundamentallyfair hearingprocedureand alsoto vest

theCounty Boardwith jurisdiction to hearthis matter. In ~p!4hwes~L~o vs. Illinois Pollution

Control Bd., supra,the Court stated: “Although the statutoryCriteria must be satisfiedbefore

local siting approvalcan be granted,Section39.2 of the Act doesnot statetheseare the only

factors which may be considered”. This Court further stated that other “legislative type

considerations”mayhe considered.

C. APPLICANT’S PRESENTED PERJUREDTESTIMONY (N SUPPORT OF
CRITERION 3. (SEE PARAGRAPH III B. BELOW, ARGUMENT RE:
CRITERION 3)
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9. APPLICANT’S EX PARTE POST-FILING CONTACTS WITH THE
COUNTY AND THE COUNTY’S PREJUDGMENT OF THE SITING
APPLICATION FUNDAMENTALLY UNFAIR

The County of Kankakeedeterminedat thetime of its entry into a host agreement

with WMII that it would approveWMII’s siting application. The County’s Solid Waste

ManagementPlan aswell asthetermsof its hostagreementdesignatesWMII asthesole

permittedoperatorof a solid wastedisposalfacility in KankakeeCounty. (See,Watson’s

Group Exhibit 7). In fact,accordingto Leonard“Shakey” Martin,a 30 yearmemberand

a pastchairmanof the Board, theapprovalby the KankakeeCounty Board of “WMII’s

applicationfor sitingapprovalwasa “foregoneconclusion”.

Mr. Martin repeatedlytestified in his deposition takenon April 29, 2003 that the

Countyhad determinedin the latter part of 200! that WMII was to be its sole waste

providerandthat it wasa foregoneconclusionthat WMII’s landfill would be sited. (See,

Hearing Officer Exhibit No. 16, pgs. 10-12, 15). Mr. Martin ftirther testified that he

believed that Charles Helston, the attorney for the staff of Kankakee County, had

informedmembersof theCounty Board at meetingsand discussionsthat he had contact

with WMII during theperiod subsequentto thefiling of the applicationfor siting dated

August 16, 2002 andbeforethedecisiondateof January31, 2003. (See,HearingOfficer

Exhibit No.16, pgs. 23-24).

The testimonyof KankakeeCounty Board Vice-Chairman Pamela Lee in her

depositionof April 30, 2003, corroboratesthe statedbelief of LeonardMartin that the

siting decisionwas a foregoneconclusion. Ms. Leetestified that County ChairmanKarl

Kruse designatedan “informal group” early in 2001 to negotiatea host agreementwith

WMII. This group, consistingof four membersof the County Board and Planning

DepartmentemployeesEfraim Gill and Mike Van Mill, met repeatedlyin 2001 with Dale
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Hoekstra,a WMII vice presidentand Lee Addleman,a WMII employeeat a seriesof

secretmeetings. (See,HearingOfficer Exhibit No. 7, pgs. 11-13, 18-19&23-24). This

group of four membersof the County Board was fonnalized into a committee in

November,2001. (See,HearingOfficer Exhibit No. II, pg. 16). At thesametime asthe

County and WMII entered into a host agreementwith WMII for the existing and new

landfill, WMII paid $500,000to the County. (See,HearingOfficer Exhibit No. II, pg.

18). At the sametime asWMII negotiatedthe host agreementwith the County, Dale

Hoekstramadeit clearto the County that WMII’s entry into a host agreementwith the

Countyandtheresultantpaymentof $500,000to theCountywasinextricably intertwined

with the County’s continuingdesignationof WMII asthesole permittedproviderin the

County’s Solid WasteManagementPlan. (See, HearingOfficer Exhibits Nos. 17&l8

and WatsonGroup Exhibit 7). In fact, WMII found this condition to be so significant

that it offered to provide counsel and pay legal fees to defend the Solid Waste

ManagementPlan in the event thesamewas challengedin court. (See Hearing Officer

Exhibits Nos. I 7&18 andHearingOfficer Exhibit 7, pg.20).

HearingOfficerBradleyHalloransustainedtheobjectionsof theCountyand WMII

to discoveryor proof relating to the Solid Waste ManagementPlan. However, it is

respectfully submitted that the terms of the host agreementand the Solid Waste

managementPlan, coupledwith WMII’s andtheCounty’s cooperativeoppositionto the

to the siting of a Town and County facility in the City of Kankakeeestablish the

fundamentalunfairnessof the instantproceedings.
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III. APPLICANT WMII FAILED TO DEMONSTRATE COMPLIANCE WITh
ALL OF THE CRITERIA REQUIRED BY 415 ILCS 5/39.2

LAW:

Section5/39.2 requiresthat any Applicant must demonstratecompliancewith the nine

listed Criteria beforea County Board can grantsiting approval. If a CountyBoard grantssiting

approval,an Objectormust establishthat the Board’sdecisionis againstthe manifestweightof

the evidence. Wabash & Lawrence Counties Taxpayers& Water Drinks Association vs.

Pollution Control Bd., 198 III. App. 3d 388.

The City of Kankakeecontendsthat the decisionof KankakeeCounty Board is against

themanifestweight of theevidenceandthefollowing Criteriaunder39.2(a).to wit:

FACTS AND ARGUMENT:

A. The Board finding of compliance with Criterion 2 that the facility is so
designed,locatedand proposedto beoperatedthat the public health, safety
andwelfarewill beprotectedis againstthemanifestweightof the evidence.

A fair summaryof the evidenceis that the Applicant, with respectto the horizontal

expansion,proposesa conventionalSubtitle D municipal wastelandfill with a compositeliner

that meetsbut doesnot exceedtheminimum specificationsof the Stateof Illinois. In supportof

the argumentthat this minimal conventionaldesign is sufficient to protect the public health,

safety and welfare, Applicant offers two explanations. Applicant has identified certain fine

gainedglacial till materialswhich accordingto the Applicant offer an effectivenaturalbarrier

betweentheproposedfacility and themajorregionalaquiferover which the facility is proposed

to be built. Secondly,Applicant relies on an inward hydraulic gradient to concludethat no

contaminantswould leave the facility evenif the minimal compositeliner systemis breached.

Applicant’s engineer,Andrew Niekodem,concededthat a threefoot recompactedclay and 60

ml. polyethyleneliner representtheminimum specificationsfor a compositeliner in a municipal

wastelandfill in Illinois. (HcaringI, Volume 22, pgs. 10-12).
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I. In Situ Materials Do Not Provide an Effective Barrier Between the Waste and
the RegionalAquifer.

TheApplicant’s argumentis flawed in a numberof regardsand hasbeen,throughcross-

examinationand the testimonyof other experts,disprovenin its entirety. First of all, with

respectto the fine grainedglacial till materialswhich areto provide an effectivenaturalbarrier

betweenthe landfill and the major regional aquifer, the Applicant has underestimatedthe

permeabilityof thesematerials,basedupon its own data,by a factorof up to 10,000. The fine

grainedmaterialsrelied uponby theApplicantaregenerallydescribedasthe WedronTill. First

of all, thesematerialsarenot homogeneous,asthesoil borings consistentlydemonstratethat the

layers or deposits of thesematerialsare irregular, the samebeing interspersedwith many

discontinuitiesand,mostimportantly,with a substantialamountof sandidentifiedin theborings.

This sandcanobviouslyactasapreferredpathwayfor contaminantmigration,therebyrendering

thepermeabilityofthetill material,itself, irrelevant.

Secondly,theApplicant’s owntestsshowtheWedronTill to be quite permeable.Theonly

field permeability tests conductedon the Wedron Till were slug tests, and theseshowed

permeabilitiesgenerally in the range of 10 to the minus 4 and 10 to the minus 5, figures

consistentwith what onewould expectfrom an unconsolidateddiscontinuousand heterogeneous

glacial till. (Hearing I, Volume 20, pg. 70). In characterizingthe WedronTill for purposeof

assessingits ability to act as a barrierbetweenthe wasteand theaquifer,Applicantdisregarded

the slug tests and choseto useinsteadthe matrix permeabilitiestakenfrom laboratorytests of

very small intact samplesof pure WedronTill. This approach,asdescribedby Karlock’sexpert

geologistCharlesNorris, is unsoundbecauseof scaleof measurementproblems. When one is

attemptingto measurereal permeabilityin the field wheresecondarypermeabilitypathwayssuch

as fracturesand sandbodiescontribute to the total permeabilityof a particularzone, it is not

appropriateto use the matrix permeability measurementsderived in the laboratory on small

intactsamples.(HearingI, Volume23, pgs. 50-57).

In response,the Applicant has arguedthat slug testsmeasurehorizontal permeability

while laboratory testsmeasurevertical permeability,and the differencesin the results can be

explainedon this basis. GeologistNorris, however,pointedout that theApplicant’sowntestsin

the laboratory in connectionwith permit modification applicationspreviously filed fbr the

existing facility showed that the appropriatedifference bctwcen vertical and horizontal

permeability is a factorsomewherebetween10 and thirty, and not the factorof 3000 which is
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containedin the siting Application. Accordingly, if we use the Applicant’s own data, the

permeabilityof theWedronTill hasbeenunderestimatedby a factorof 100 to 300.

Thirdly, the Applicant seriouslyoverstatesthe thicknessof the protectivetill barrier

betweenthe waste and theaquifer. JoanUnderwood,the Applicant’s residenthydro-geologist,

testifiedthat therewasan averageof 16 feet of fine grainedimpermeablematerialunderneaththe

proposedexcavation. Addressingthis issuein terms of the averagethicknessof the protective

till barrieris dangerousandmisleadingsincethefacility canonly perform aswell as its weakest

component.Thereforeaveragesarecompletelyirrelevantin termsof assessingsafety.

Andrew Niekodeni, thedesignerofthe proposedfacility, testifiedthat he believedthere

was a minimum of eight feet of “in situ” clay underneaththe proposedfacility. (Hearing I,

Volume 12, Page54). GeologistJoanUnderwoodacknowledgedthat Nickodem’sassumptionof

a minimumclaybarrierofeight feetwasnot true. (HearingI ,Volume20, pg. 65). In fact, Joan

Underwoodon cross-examinationconcededthat in a numberof locationsthe bedrockaquifer

wasonly two to threefeet from thebottom oftheproposedexcavation. At location B 132, the

bedrockaquiferwas two to threefeet from theexcavationbottom, at location B 120 therewasa

maximumof threeand one-halffeet of clay beneaththe proposedliner, and at location B 141

therewas a maximum of threefeetof clay abovethebedrockaquifer. (Hearing I, Volume 20,

pgs.85, 95, 99). Theaccuracyofthemeasurementofeventhis minimal amountof claybarrier

is calledinto questionby virtueof thefact that samplingrecoveriestendedto be very poorat the

bedrockltill interfaceacrosstheentire site. Ms. Underwoodconcededthat poorrecoveriescan

happendueto thematerialsbeinglooseand discontinuous(Volume20, Page90). Moreover,at

a number of soil boring locations, WMII’s geologic interpretation for a zone of material

immediatelyabovethebedrockaquifer is clayeventhoughno materialwhatsoeverwasactually

recoveredfrom that zone. Boring locationsB123 andB127 would be just two examplesof this

dangerouslynon-conservativeinterpretationby theApplicant’s geologicteam.(Volume21, Page

60).

Fourth, other data at the site demonstratesconclusively the excellent hydraulic

communicationbetweenthe surticial water table and the silurian dolomite aquifer. At the

southern portion of the site, the vertical gradientsbetweenthe surficial water table and the

dolomite aquifer are minimal, and such minimal vertical gradients were concededby Ms.

Underwoodasbeing consistentwith good flow or good hydraulic connectionbetweenthe two

units, (Hearing I, Volume 20, pgs. 78-79). In addition, Underwoodconcededthat seasonally
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changingwater levels in the deepwells would be consistentwith those wells being recharged

from the groundsurface. (Hearing1, Volume 20, pg. 44). CharlesNorris pointed out that the

Application lacked time serieswater level data in the new borings and wells, and this would

easilyhavealloweda determinationof whetheror not deepwells showedtheseasonalvariation

which evidencestheir hydraulic connectionto surticial units. (Hearing I, Volume 23, pg. I 8).

Fortunately,this datawas availablefor theexisting facility as it hasbeensubmittedperiodically

to the EPA in connectionwith permit modifications. Karlock’s Exhibits 7.8, 7.9 and 7.10,

utilizing data from the existing facility deep monitoring wells proved that not only is there

seasonalwater level variation in thesewells, but the variation is equal in amplitude to the

seasonalvariation in the correspondingshallow wells, therebyconfirming the direct hydraulic

communicationbetweentheshallowanddeeperwater zones.(Hearing1, Volume23,pg. 81).

Fifth, the fact the regional bedrock aquifer underneaththe existing facility has been

contaminatedand impactedby theexisting facility is conclusiveproofthat theglacial tills under

thesitedo not actasaneffectivebarrierto contaminantmigration. CharlesNorris’ reviewofthe

monitoring well datafrom the existing site demonstratedthat groundwaterhasbeenimpacted

due to releasesfrom that site (HearingI, Volume 23, pg. 70). While the Applicanthasdenied

that theseimpactsarethe resultof releasesof leachate,theyhaveacknowledgedthat fugitive gas

from theexistingsitemay havecausedtheproblem.(Hearing 1, Volume 23, pg. 76). As Norris

pointed out, the existenceof contaminatedfugitive gasin thebedrockaquiferdeepunderneath

the existing facility is bad in and of itself in that provesthegas hasbeen drivendownwardby

pressurethroughpreferredmigrationpathways.(HearingI, Volume23, pg. 78).

TheApplicant’s responseto multiple contaminantexceedancesin monitoring wells at the

existingfacility is disturbinglynon-conservative.Theseresponsesas detailedin the Application

and as repeatedby the Applicant’s witnesses,most notably in-househydro-geologistTerry

Johnson, include everything from changing testing laboratoriesto decommissioningwells.

Additionally, the Applicant beganto usea conceptknown as “intrawell comparison”,whereby

contaminantlevels in one well are not comparedto anotherbut ratherare comparedto the

previoushistory in that well. CharlesNorris demonstratedgraphicallyin Karlock Exhibit 7-27

how theconceptof intrawell comparisoncan be usedto increasetheAGQS (groundwaterquality

standards)in a given well over a periodof time, sometimesby as much as a factor of’ 100.

(HearingI, Volume23, pgs.94-95).
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Applicant’s geologist JoanUnderwoodadmitted that she did not do a water balance,

which would havebeenan excellentquality control checkon her assumptionsregardingtravel

times and volumesthrough the WedronTill. CharlesNorris did performa masswaterbalance

using the dataderived from the Applicant’s own testing and found that conservativelythe

Applicant’s estimateof watermovingthrough thegroundwaterflow systemat theproposedsite

was off by a factorof 52. This meansthat either 52 times asmuch water was moving through

the systemasthe Applicant indicatedor that the water was moving 52 timesmore rapidly than

the Applicant indicated.(HearingI, Volume 23, pgs. 66-69). Norris concludedthat thetotality

of’ theevidencewasthat theApplicant hadseverelyunderestimatedthevolume and thespeedof

groundwatermovementat theproposedsite.(HearingI, Volume23, pg. 59).

2. The Groundwater Impact Assessmentis Basedon Incorrect Input Parameters
andis Thus ofNo Value.

The Applicant relies on the resultsof a groundwaterimpact assessmentto support its

conclusionsabout the integrity of the Wedron Till and the ability of that Till to provide

meaningfulseparationbetweenthe proposedfacility and the aquifer. A groundwaterimpact

assessmentis nothing more than a computer model calculating the speed and volume of

groundwaterand potential contaminantflow basedupon various input parametersprovided by

the modeler. Although Ms. Underwoodacknowledgedthat she had performeda worst case

analysisassessment,the assessmentreported in the Application was the “average” case. As

previouslyindicated, the public health,safety,and welfarewill only be protectedto theextent

that theweakestor worst componentof the landfill systemcan perform. Therefore,an average

caseassessmentis essentiallyworthless.

Thatnotwithstanding,theparametersusedby Ms. Underwoodin thegroundwaterimpact

assessmentindicatea total disregardfor the actualsite specificdataavailableto the Applicant.

Ms. Underwoodacknowledgedthat the assessmentmodeled the thicknessof the fine grained

glacial till materialsat 16 feet. (Hearing1, Volume20, pg. 63). This is morethanfive times the

thicknessof approximatelythree feet encounteredat least three different locations. For the

permeabilityof this glacial till material, Ms. Underwoodused laboratory matrix permeability

figures which are about3000 times lower than the field scaleobservationsrecordedin theslug

tests. In somecases,theslug testsshow permeahilities10,000 times greaterthan the laboratory

matrix permeability tests. (Hearing I, Volume 21, pg. 30-3]). The Applicant’s assumptions

I5



regardingthe Wedron Till actually suggestthat this heterogeneousdiscontinuousfrequently

sandy glacial material would be many times less permeablethan the carefully constructed

recoinpactedclay liner proposedby the Applicant. If one believesthe groundwaterimpact

assessmentspermeabilityparametersfor the Wedron Till, constructionof a recompactedclay

liner is, at best, superfluousand, at worst, a dangerousover excavationof tighter and less

permeablematerialsthanany engineercouldconstruct.

Although themodel, itself, calls for separateparametersto be input for thepermeabilityof

the recompactedclay and the 60 ml. polyethylenein the Applicant’s composite liner, Ms.

Underwoodchoseto use a figure averagingboth of thesecomponentstogetherwith the result

that the threefeetof recompaetedclay is modeledasbeing4500times less permeablethan what

the Applicant’s engineer indicated could be achieved. (Hearing I, Volume 21, pg. 32).

Applicant’sengineer,Andrew Nickodem,acknowledgedthat an engineeredclay liner at thesite

could be recompactedto achieve one times ten to the minus seven permeability, but not

permeability in the ten to the minus nine range.(Hearing 1, Volume 22, pg. 86). However,

averagingthevery low permeabilityoftheplastic componentof thecompositeliner in with the

recompactedclay portion is extremelymisleadingin that the permeabilityfigure for the 60 ml.

plastic doesnot evenrepresenttravel time through the plastic, but rather an estimationof the

total flux based upon the assumednumber of pinhole defects in that plastic. The true

permeabilityof theplasticportionof the liner is eitherzeroor one dependingon whetherweare

at a pointwherethereis adefector not. At apoint wherethereis a defect, leachatewould travel

throughthe plasticliner moreor lessinstantaneouslyandnow it becomescritical at that point to

know the true permeabilityof the recompactedclay. Through a trick of mathematics,Ms.

Underwoodhasthereforeunderestimatedtravel times throughthe recompactedliner by a factor

of 4500.

3. The Inward Hydraulic Gradient is Not Sufficiently Established Or
Understood.

Ms. Underwoodmodeledonly for diffusion asthe mechanismfor transportof leachate

andnot for advectiveflow (Hearing I, Volume21, pg. 33). Basedupon the inward gradient,the

Applicant therefhreassumesthat thereis no possibility of leachateflow from the facility. This is

basedon the dubious assumptionthat the inward gradient can he proven, and the even rnorc

dubiousassumptionthat the inward gradientcanhe perpetuallymaintained.

16



Theevidencesuggeststhat thepurportedinward hydraulicgradientat this site is not well

understood,and that the Applicant’s various expertshavenot communicatedwith eachother

regardingthesame.

Andrew Nickodeni was the designerof the landfill. He acknowledgesthat the landfill

would havean inward hydraulicgradient,which geologicfeaturehe believedto be beneficial.

To ascertainthe inward gradient,Nickodem usedthe water levels in the silurium dolomite

aquiferasdepictedon thepotentiometricsurfacemapof thedolomitewell headsin Drawing 17

in the Application. Basedupon this, the basegradesfor the top of the liner weresignificantly

loweredin thetwo southernmostcells (HearingI, Volume 12, pg. 40). Nickodem furtherused

thedolomitewaterlevelsto computethepotentialfor hydrostaticuplift pressureduring andafter

construction.(Hearing1, Volume 12, pgs.4 1-43). Sincetheproposedlandfill is to be built in the

till rather than in the dolomite aquifer, Mr. Nickodem’s useof the aquifer water levels to

computehydrostaticuplift andotherengineeringrequirementsis counter-intuitive.

In fact, Mr. Nickoderm’sunderstandingof the inward gradientwascontradictedby Joan

Underwoodwho testified that the inward gradient is basedupon the water levels in the water

table. (Hearing 1, Volume 20, pg. 13). Ms. Underwood never did prepare,nor does the

Application contain, potentiometricsurfacemapsfor the water table or the WedronTill, even

thoughcomparingand contrastingthosepotentiometricsurfacesto that in thedolomiteaquifer

would enhanceunderstandingof the hydraulic inter-relationshipbetweenthe respectiveunits.

(Hearing I, Volume l2, pgs. 14-16). Ms. Underwood actually concededthat if one usedthe

water levels in the dolomite welts to establishthe inward gradient,therewould be no inward

gradientat liner contoursabovethe 626 elevationin the northeastportion of the proposedsite.

(HearingI, Volume20, pg. 66).

The fact that the landfill designerdoes not understandhow the inward gradient is

achievedis especiallytroubling becausethat gradient,once achieved,needsto be maintained.

Mr. Niekodeni’serror is not surprisingsincepresumablyhe relied on his mistakenbelief that

therewas a minimum of eight feetof low permeabilityclay underneaththe entire proposedsite

in determiningnot to designa compositeliner that exceededStateminimum specifications.Mr.

Nickodemalso did not havea clearunderstandingof the Statcrequirementthat therebe no more

than one foot of leachateon the liner. Etc did not know whetherthis requirementapplied to the

highestor lowest portion of the liner, and this is significantin light of the fact that the liner in

eachcell typically hasa drop in elevationfrom its high point at the eastcnd of the cell to the
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sump at thewestend of the cell of approximately14 feet. (Hearing I, Volume 12, pg.~~8).Ms.

Underwood,at least,understoodthat the State requirementprohibits more than one foot of

leachatebeingmaintainedat anypoint on the liner. (Hearing1, Volume21, pg. 45). This point is

relevantfor morethan demonstratingthe lack of communicationbetweenApplicant’s engineer

andgeologistbecausetheApplicant’sgeologistacknowledgedthat aslittle assix feet of leachate

at the southeastportion of the site would reversethe inward hydraulic gradient in that area.

(Hearing1, Volume21, pg. 35).

Of course,noneof the witnessesfor WasteManagementcould pinpoint the time when

theleachatepumpswould be shut off or the amountof leachatethat would be producedafter

closure,when the engineeredportionsof the final cover would begin to fail, the rateat which

precipitationwould infiltrate andbecomeleachateafter theonsetof failure in thefinal cover,and

whentheinward gradientwould inevitably and irrevocablybe lost. Mr. Nickodemdid not even

know whetherthe designof thefinal coverexceededStateminimum specifications.(Hearing1,

Volume 12, pg. 55). He did, however, anticipatethat settlementof thewastewould rangefrom

between 10 to 30 percent. (Hearing I, Volume 13, pgs. 16-17). Therewas no testimony

presented,nor is theredatain the Application, that thefinal engineeredcover canwithstandthe

flexion, stretching,and otherdeformationwhich must accompanysignificant settlementin the

wastemass.

4. The GroundwaterMonitoring Program is Based Upon an Incomplete and
FlawedUnderstandingof Groundwaterflow attheSite.

The only groundwaterflow map presentedin the Application is Drawing 17 which

presentsthe potentiometric surface of the silurian dolomite aquifer. This map depicts a

groundwaterhigh in thegeneralcenterof thesite at Boring BuS with flow from this point to the

north, east and south. This map also incorporatesthe existing facility and shows the

groundwaterflow thereunder. Ms. Underwoodin developingthis flow map failed to include

groundwaterdata from pre-existing dolomite monitoring wells GIOD, GI2D, and G26D.

(1-tearing 1, Volumc 20, pg. 19). Her explanationfor theseomissionsis that thesewells were

deemedby her to not be “representative.”(Hearing1, Volume20, pgs.20-23). However,these

wells were deemedsufficiently representativeto be part of the monitoring program at the

original site, and to be included in all groundwaterflow mapstenderedto the IEPA in thepast in

connectionwith significant permit modificationapplications.(Karlock Exhibit #3). On the other
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hand,becauseit apparentlysuitedher, Ms. Underwoodincludedwaterlevelsfrom two existing

facility monitoring wells, (28D and 29D), which were takensevenyears prior to the readings

from the newly developedwells. (HearingI, Volume 20, pg. 30). This is particularly troubling

both becausethereis no scientificbasis for mixing water datafrom different time periods,and

becauseit has allowed Ms. Underwood to hypothesizefor monitoring purposesa grossly

oversimplifiedgroundwaterflow system.

In connection with previous permit modifications, Ms. Underwood’s peers at Rust

Engineering(now Earthtech)havearguedto the IEPA that thegroundwaterin theaquiferunder

the existing site wassubjectto strong localized,channelizedflow. (Karlock Exhibit #4). Ms.

Underwooddismissedanddisagreedwith this conclusion.(HearingI, Volume 21, pg. 39). It is

somewhatironic and disingenuousthat WMII’s previous, but now discreditedand repudiated,

descriptionof the complexity of the groundwaterflow at theexisting facility was significantly

relied upon asjustification for theuseof intrawell analysisfor theestablishmentofgroundwater

quality standards.

Mr. Norris demonstratedthat using all of the availablemonitoring datafrom the existing

facility confirms the strongly localized groundwaterflow at the existing facility, (Hearing I,

Volume23, pg. 45). He alsopointedout that theexistenceof suchotherchannelizedflow under

themuchlargerexpansionis unknown,but certainlyshouldbe suspected.Theevidenceraisesa

strong possibility of a solution channelin the dolomiteat elevation575 (approximately25 feet

below the top of bedrock). Ms. Underwoodacknowledgedthat residualshalewaspresentat

elevation576 in Boring B 103, and that therewas spontaneousboreholewideningat elevations

577 and575 in Borings B ISO and Bl52 respectively(Hearing1, Volume20, pgs.49, 52-53). Mr.

Norris also reviewedthis dataandexplainedthat it most likely representeda solution channelin

the dolomite which neededto be confirmedor ruled out for purposesof establishingcorrect

monitoringwell locations.(HearingI, Volume23, pgs. 37-41).

The questions raised by the water levels in Boring B 115 were never satisfactorily

answered.This piezometeris attheapproximatemiddleof thenew siteand with dolomitewater

levels of 632 feet, representsthe groundwaterhigh in the silurium dolomite. Ms. Underwood

was questionedabout this at length and acknowledgedthat B 115 was in fact the point of the

groundwaterhigh, but gaveno adequateexplanationasto wherethe flow came from to create

this high (Hearing I, Volume 20, pgs. 56-61). Ms. Underwood acknowledgedthat therewas

somerechargefrom the surface. However,given theamountof low permeabilitytill abovethe
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dolomite in the areaof B 115 rechargefrom the surfaceshould be insignificant and certainly

should not be sufficient to dominatethe groundwater flow patterns which on Applicant’s

Drawing 17 emanatein threedirectionsfrom the B 115 location. Ms. Underwoodspeculatedthat

thehulk of the rechargehadto comefrom thewest,but shewasunableto identi~’anydolomite

headseitheron siteor off site to thewestwith elevationsabove632 feet.

Of course, if one acceptsthe Applicant’s slug test data as being representativeof

groundwaterflow in the WedronTill in conjunctionwith the soil borings, the picturebecomes

one of a highly irregular discontinuousand permeabletill where surfacewater is in easy

hydraulic communicationwith the aquifer. In this scenario,rechargeat BI IS from surficial

water is entirely plausibleand consistent. However,the questionthenbecomeswhat the effect

on the inward gradient will be from building a landfill directly above an area where the

groundwateris apparentlyrecharged.Thelogical conclusionis that cuttingoff therechargewill

reducegroundwaterlevelsin all flow directionstherebyfurther imperiling the inward gradient.

Themonitoring plan proposedby theApplicant’s geologisthasa 1500 foot gap between

groundwatermonitoring wells at the northeasternand eastcentralportion of the proposedsite.

(HearingI, Volume21, pg. 42). Given thesuddenandunexpecteddiscontinuitiesin sandbodies

encounteredat the site and the possibility of solution channels,this is an irresponsiblylarge

interval, particularly since general flow from thegroundwaterhigh in the middle of the site is

toward this gapin themonitoringwells. Moreover,themonitoringprogramdoesnot accountfor

the downwardgradientobservedin all four locationswhereboth shallow and deepwells were

installed in the aquifer. This can only give rise to the possibility of contaminantstraveling

downwardin theaquiferbelow themonitoringhorizon.(HearingI, Volume23, pg. 97).

B. The Board finding of compliance with Criterion 3, that the facility is so
located so as to minimize its incompatibility with the characterof the
surroundingareaand to minimize the effect on the valueof thesurrounding
property, is against the manifestweight of the evidence.

I. Minimize incompatibility with character of surrounding area.

At the original hearings(11/05/02through 12/06.02), the Petitionercalled two expert

witnesseson this issue. J. ChristopherLannert testified as a land usc plannerand landscape

architectemployedby theLannertGroup from Geneva,Illinois. (HearingI, Volume 3, pgs.54-

55). After extensivedirect examinationby counselfor the Petinoners,Mr. Lannertwas asked

20



the following questions,“Mr. Lannert,basedupon experience,you reviewedthis application,do

you havean opinionasto whethertheproposedexpansionis compatiblewith thecharacterofthe

surroundingarea?”(Hearing I, Volume 3, pgs. 7 1-72). In response,Mr. Lannert stated,“my

opinion is that it is compatiblewith the characterof thesurroundingarea.” Mr. Lannert further

goeson to amplify thereasonswhy in his opinion the facility is “compatible”with thecharacter

of thesurroundingarea. On severaloccasionsduring theproceedingsthis opinionwas reiterated.

Theopiniongivenby Mr. Lannertdoesnot addressCriterion 3 at all. Criterion 3 clearly

requires an opinion as to whether or not the facility is located so as to “minimize” the

incompatibility with thecharacterof the area. This would call for testimonyindicatingthat the

proposedfacility has so reducedthe incompatibility as to be at a minimum. Mr. Lannert’s

conclusionthat the proposedexpansion“is compatible” fails to indicatewhat Criterion 3 calls

for, thereforehis opinion is not relevantto Criterion 3.

2. Minimize effecton value ofsurrounding property.

PetitionercalledPatriciaMcGarrasan experton that portionof Criterion 3 relatingto the

minimization of the effect of the facility on the valuesof surroundingproperty. Her testimony

should havebeenstrickenand totally discountedby theCounty Boardduring thesiting hearings

for two reasons: (a) Heropinionswerenot basedupon factsthat would warranther conclusions;

(b) Sheperjuredherselfasto her credentialsas an expert.

a.) Ms. McGarr’s analysisof theestimatedeffect of the proposedfacility on the

valueof farmlandand residentialland doesnot supporther conclusion. Her analysiswas based

only on valuesgoing back to 1998 and through 2001. She stated,“Sales information is not

availablefor the pubic to review prior to 1998 without giving a specific pin numberor specific

dateof sale.”(Hearing1, Volume 6, pgs. 12-13) Her analysisof farmland fails to take into

accountany farm saleswithin thelast threeyears.(HearingI, Volume 8, pg. Ill). Heranalysis

of residential values is unsupportedby facts becauseof the arbitrary way in which she

determinedthe control areaand the target areaof her study. She used no scientific basis in

determining those two areasand this seriouslyjeopardizesthe accuracyof her conclusion.

(HearingI, Volumes 6, 7 and8).

Ms. MeGarrandthe Petitionerwhom sherepresentedrecognizedthe weaknessof

this analysisand tried to bolsterthis by referringto anotherstudy to a completelydifferentarea

of the State. She testified abouther studyof the Settlers Hill Landfill locatedin Kane County.
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That site is separatedfrom this site by many miles and thereis nothing in the testimonyof Ms.

McGarr,which would makeit of any value to the KankakeeCountyarea.

When quizzed by Attorney Flynn aboutthe availability of the records, Patricia

McGarrwasasked,“Q. You indicatedthat theCountyAssessor’sOffice in termsof residential

salesin the Countyof Kankakeewent backfor two years?

A. No. It went back to 1998.

Q. I’m sorry. 1998. The MLS, doesit go back further than 1998?

A. It goesback two years,and then you can go into archives,and you might be

ableto find someinformationin their archives.

Q. Did you attempt to go into the archivesto determine what information

concerningsalesexistedprior to 1998?

A. No. Sincethe — I principally relied on the CountyRecords,and sinceit went

backfour years,I stayedwithin that four-yearrange.

Q. With regardsto the recordsyou got from theCounty Assessor’sOffice, did

you actuallyget thetransferdocumentsor did you geta computerprintout of the

sales?

A. I got acopyof thetransferdocument.

Q. Is it yourtestimonyheretodaythat thetransferdocumentsfor residentialsales

in theCountyofKankakeeprior to 1998 do not exist?

A. No, sir. I’m sayingthat they’renot availablefor thepublic to reviewwithout

askingfor a specific pin numberor dateof sale.

Q. Did you havemapswhich would help you identify what pin numberswere in

a particularlocation?

A. Well, I waslooking at a squaremile, so therewasa lot of pin numbers. And

to haveto fill out a Freedomof InformationRequestfor eachpin in everyblock, I

could havebeen looking at hundredsand hundreds,and than to go back every

year, principally, I like to go back ten years, the people that worked in the

AssessmentOffice when I was talking to them didn’t think that was a realistic

thing for me to do.” (Siting Hearings,TranscriptVolumeVI, pages45 —47)

It is clearfrom the foregoing,that PatriciaMcGarrrealizedthat moreextensivework was

necessaryand more resourceswere available. However, she simply chose not to use the

resourcesor do thework.
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b) Ms. McGarr’s opinionsareso lacking in factual support that they areof

virtually no value. An opinionof an expertwhich hasnot beenadequatelysupporteddoesnot go

to thequalificationoftheexpertwhotestified but ratherto theweight andsufficiencyto be given

the evidenceby trier of fact. (National Bank of Monticello vs. Doss, 141 III. App. 3d 1055,

1072). Illinois Courts havefurtherheld that, “. . . theweight to beassignedto an expertopinion

is for thejury to determinein light of theexpert’scredentialsand factual basisof his opinion.”

(Snelsonvs. Kamm, 203 WL 1359496(III.): Wiegman,308 Ill. App. 3d 799; Treadwell vs.

Downey,209 111. App. 3d 999.) In the caseof PatriciaMcGarr,the factual basisof her opinion

was seriouslyerodedand in addition,as arguedbelow, her credentialsasan experthavebeen

comprised.

The County Board made no referenceto the creditability of Ms. McGarr’s

testimony. It leadsoneto inescapablyconcludethat this very importantissuewasneverat any

time consideredby thefinderoffact.

Basedupon the foregoing,PatriciaMcGarr’sopinionsshould havebeenstricken

andtotally discounted.

c) Throughoutthe siting hearings,PatriciaMcGarr insistedthat shehad a

degreefrom RichardJ. Daley Community College. She also agreedto provide proofof that

representation.(Hearing I, Volume 6, pgs. 36-37). Her counsel, Don Moran, also made

promisesthathe would providethis proofthroughoutthesiting hearings.(HearingI, Volume7,

pg. 15). At no time wasany proof forthcoming. To the contrary, it was shownby affidavit

during thesiting hearing,aswell as,by testimonyfrom the Keeperof theRecordsof RichardJ.

DaleyCommunityCollege that PatriciaMcGarr’s testimonywith regardto that issuehad been

false. Marianne Powers, the Supervisorof Admissionsand Markets and the Keeperof the

Recordsat RichardJ. DaleyCommunityCollege,testifiedat theFundamentalFairnesshearing

that indeedPatriciaMcGarrnever graduatedand neverhadsufficient credits to graduate. She

further testified that Patricia McGarr knew this beforeshe testified at the siting hearingsas a

supposedexpertin the field of Real EstateAppraisal.(HearingII, Volume2, pgs. 60-95). Ms.

McGarr’s relianceon that degreein her Curriculum Vitae and her insistencethat shereceived

that degreeandwaswilling to provide it in spiteof theobviousfact that sheneverreceivedone,

destroyshercreditability asa witness. It most certainlyunderminesher profferedcredentials,

but moreimportantly, it showsher willingnessto falsify in order to sell her opinion. Therecord
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clearly shows that she was a hired agent of the Petitioners. This coupled with her

iiiisrepresentationasto herdegreeshouldserveasa basisto barall ofher testimony.

During thesiting hearingson November20, 2002, thehearingdirectedMr. Moran

to provideAttorneyFlynn with a certifiedcopyof Ms. McGarr’sdiploma. Moransaidhe would,

but neverdid. Attorney Flynn thensaid, “If that is not produced,I would like anopportunityto

cross-examinethis witnessfurther”. The hearingofficer replied, “fine”. (HearingI, Volume 7,

pg. 16).

TheIllinois AppellateCourt in Heringtonvs. Smith, 138 111. App. 3d 28, heldhas

follows, “The Court,however,hasinherentpowerandresponsibilityto safeguardtheintegrity of

thejudicial process.Whereperjuredtestimonyso permeatesthat processasto constitutea fraud

upon thecourt, falsetestimonyby a materialwitnessmay alonebe sufficient to warranta new

trial.” In this case,theCity of KankakeeandtheotherObjectorsareentitled to a full disclosure

of the Petitioner’sexpert’scredentials. They wereneverforthcomingand in fact the Petitioner

did everythinghe couldto sidesteptheobvious fact that PatriciaMcGarr’s credentialshad been

falsified. Theresultis twofold: (1) Hertestimonyis inherentlyincredibleandshouldbestricken

andthe findingof theCountyBoardasto Criterion 3 shouldbe foundto beagainstthemanifest

weight of the evidence;and (2) That the perjuredtestimonyrelied upon by the Petitioner

completelydestroysthefundamentalfairnessfor all Objectors.

C. That the Board’s finding of compliance with Criterion 5 that the plan of
operation for the facility is designed the minimize the dangers to the
surrounding area from fire, spills, or other operational accidents, is against the
manifestweight ofthe evidence.

Theevidencereferredto abovewhich indicatesthat theproposedoperationof thefacility

doesnot includea monitoringsystemto protectagainstradiationhazardsandothershortcomings

in Petitioner’splandoesnot supporta finding calledfor in Criterion 5.

In addition, Objectorfrom theCity of Kankakeeincorporatesits argumentsset forth in

paragraphIII A. above.

D. TheBoard findings of compliancewith Criterion 6 that the traffic patterns to
or from the facility are so designedas to minimize the impact of the existing
traffic flow, is against the manifestweight ofthe evidence.
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Petitionercalled StevenCorcoranas its experttraffic flow design. Mr. Corcoranis a

traffic engineer,employedby Metro TransportationGroup, Inc.

Mr. Corcoran’sconclusionsarebasedupon a minimal amountofdatawhich brings into

questiontheaccuracyof his conclusion. Mr. Corcoranspecifically testified,“Our intersection

countsat 6000we had peoplethereduring thecourseof onedayduring themorningperiodand

theeveningperiod. So that’soneday for severalhoursduring thatoneday.

We placedanotherpersondoing a 12-hourcountat theentranceto the existing landfill.

Sothat was 12 hoursin thecourseof oneday.

Andwhat weactuallydo thereis wedon’t haveonepersonsit therefor 12 hours. They -

- we breakthemup into shifts.

And thenwehaveour - - usuallyour traffic countsupervisororhis assistantswould go

out and set up the tube count. And so they’d makethreetotal trips during the courseof that

week: oneto setit up, at leastoneto checkon it in themiddleof theweek,to see- - I’m sorry -

- if a tubegot torn up, andthenat leastoneothertrip.

Sotwo or threedaystheymadespotvisits to setup theequipmentorcheckon it or pick

it up.” (HearingI, Volume5, pgs.96-98).

It is clear that the amount of data relied upon by Mr. Corcoran in reaching his

conclusionswas not sufficient to carry Petitioner’s burden of proof on Criterion 6 and is

thereforeagainstthemanifestweightof theevidence.

E. The Board finding of compliancewith Criterion 8 that the proposed facility
is consistentwith the waste management plan adopted by the Kankakee
County Board, is against the manifestweight ofthe evidence.

City of Kankakeereadoptsandrestatesits argumentsetforth in paragraphsI. F and II. B
(Supra)

Not only do theseargumentsgo to the issuesofjurisdiction and FundamentalFairness,
but also clearly establishthat the proposedfacility is not consistentwith the County’s waste
managementplan. Therefore,the Board’sfinding that it is so consistentis againstthemanifest
weightof theevidence.

Conclusion.

Based upon the foregoing arguments,the finding of the Kankakee County Board

approvingthe siting of a Landfill facility at the location proposedin the Petition referredto
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therein is againstthe manifestweightof the evidenceand the finding of said Board should be

reversed.

Respectfullysubmitted,

By _____________

KennethA. Leshen
AssistantCity Attorney

Preparedby:

L. PatrickPower
AssistantCity Attorney
956 N. Fifth Ave.
Kankakee,IL 60901
(815)937-6937
Reg. No. 2244357

KennethA. Leshen
AssistantCity Attorney
OneDearbornSquare,Suite550
Kankakee,IL 60901
815/933-3385
Reg.No. 03127454
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